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"In order to prove possession of unlawful 

drugs, the State must show more than the 

mere presence of the defendant in the 

vicinity of the contraband. It must be 

established that the defendant had some 

degree of dominion and control over the 

drugs or had the right to dominion and 

control over them." 

William L. Ferguson 
State Circuit Solicitor- Elect 
16th Judicial Circuit 
York- Union Counties 
State of South Carolina 
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MOTOR VEHICLES ... 

PASSENGER'S RESPONSIBILITY 

FOR UNLAWFUL DRUGS 

It is frequently difficult to determine with 

certainty whether or not the passengers in a 

suspect vehicle containing unlawful drugs had 

sufficient technical 'possession and control' of 

the drugs to be guilty of their possession under 

a criminal statute. 

Recently, in Charleston County, police charged 

both driver and passenger with 'possession' when 

a quantity of marijuana was found on the floorboard 

of the back seat. Statev. Brown, SC, August 18, 

1976. 
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FACTS 

"On January 18, 1974 at about 1:00 a.m. a 

Charleston County policeman, Rogers, in uniform 

and driving a marked patrol car saw a 1964 Ford 

Falcon parked on the side of a desolate, rural 

county road. As he approached the car, its head

lights came on, it started up, and proceeded down 

the road. Residents in the area had requested 

patrollings due to vandalism, break-ins, and 

suspicious automobiles in the area at night. 

Thinking perhaps the car was stolen, the patrolman 

turned on his blue light and stopped the suspect 

car. The driver, Leon Wolfe, got out of the car 

and produced his license as requested. In response 

to Rogers' inquiries, he replied that he was in the 

area just riding around and that the passenger was 

Chuck Brown. The patrolman frisked Wolfe for a 

weapon and finding a bulge asked him to take it out. 

The bulge was a large roll of cash. There was no 

weapon. 
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"The patrolman's initial suspicion was compounded 

by Wolfe's nervousness and the large roll of cash 

so he approached the car and asked the passenger to 

step out. Upon approaching the car, the patrolman 

testified he smelled a strong odor of burned 

marijuana. The passenger identified himself as Chuck 

Brown, appellant herein. Rogers requested identifi

cation but Brown had none. Brown was frisked but 

had no weapon. 

"The patrolman noticed a large brown, opaque 

garbage bag on the floorboard behind the back seat. 

Rogers asked Wolfe what was in the bag and was told 

it was laundry. Rogers reached through the open car 

window, felt it, and retorted 'You don't expect me 

to believe that?' Wolfe then admitted it was eight 

pounds of marijuana. The opaque garbage bag contained 

eight, one-pound packages in translucent, plastic 

bags, one of which was open. The marijuana was 

described as damp." 
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WHAT EVIDENCE IS 

REQUIRED TO CONVICT 

"Conviction of possession of marijuana requires 

proof of possession- either actual or constructive, 

coupled with knowledge of its presence. To prove 

constructive possession the State must show a 

defendant had dominion and control, or the right to 

exercise dominion and control, over the marijuana. 

Such possession can be established by circumstantial 

as well as direct evidence and may be jointly 

shared. U.S. v. Bethea, 422F.(2d)790 (U.S. App.D.C. 

1971). 

"The sum total of the State's evidence against 

Brown is that he was a passenger in a car on a 

deserted rural road about 1:00 a.m., that Wolfe had 

an undetermined sum of cash in a large roll, that 

Brown was nervous and had no identification, that 

there was a smell of marijuana in the car, and that 

there was a large opaque bag containing eight pounds 

of marijuana on the rear floorboard." 
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COMMENT ON FACTS 

OF THIS CASE 

"There was no evidence adduced by the State as 

to ownership of the car or any special relation 

appellant had with Wolfe or the owner from which 

Brown's control of the car or its contents might be 

inferred. The bag containing the marijuana was 

opaque and so situated that a front seat passenger 

might never have seen the bag, much less its 

contents. There was no evidence that Brown was a 

seller or user of drugs or that he even recognized 

the odor of marijuana; or that he was a close friend 

of the driver; or that he spent a substantial part 

of the night with him. Although Rogers testified 

he smelled the odor of burned marijuana he found no 

residue of such ir, or about the car of the defendant. 

"It is elementary that in deciding whether the 

court erred in failing to direct a verdict in favor 
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of a defendant in a criminal case the appellant 

court is required to view the testimony in the light 

most favorable to the State. When a motion for a 

direct verdict is made the trial judge is concerned 

with the existence or nonexistence of evidence, not 

with its weight. It is his duty to submit the case 

to the jury, if there is any evidence, either direct 

or circumstantial, which reasonably tends to prove 

the guilt of the accused or from which guilt may be 

fairly and logically deduced. However, the motion 

for a directed verdict should be granted where 

evidence merely raises a suspicion of guilt, or is 

such as to permit the jury to merely conjecture or 

to speculate as to the accused's guilt." 
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COURT 1 S HOLDING 

"As this Court stated in State v. Tabory, 260 S.C. 

355, 364, 'proof of possession requires more than 

proof of mere presence', and 'the State must show 

defendant had dominion and control over the thing 

allegedly possessed or had right to exercise 

dominion and control over it'. 

"The evidence when reviewed in the light most 

favorable to the State fails to make a jury issue 

of appellant's dominion and control of the 

marijuana, an essential element of both crimes. 

Therefore, the trial court was in error in denying 

appellant's motion for a directed verdict. 

"Accordingly, we reverse." 
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FORCIBLE ENTRY INTO DOMICILE ... 

SEARCH OF IMMEDIATE 

AREA NEAR DEFENDANT 

(US v. Murrie, 534 F2d 695) 

Magistrates and other issuing judges are often 

careless in requiring less than enough identifying 

information when issuing arrest warrants. In 

Detroit, for example, a Federal magistrate issued 

an arrest warrant charging possession of heroin, a 

felony, against 'Tommie Murrie'. 

It would appear to almost anyone that the 

magistrate would have required that he be furnished 

with a proper first name, at least a middle initial, 

and some assurance that the wanted man did not have 

a son with the same name (Jr.). He did not. 

t 
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FACTS 

Police, armed with the arrest warrant, 

approached the front door of the apartment where 

'Tommie Murrie' was said to live. 

"The officers involved testified that they 

knocked on the locked door, shouted 'police officers 

with arrest warrants, open up', and received no 

response. They then kicked in the door. Some 

officers went into the ground floor flat and others 

went up the stairs to the upper flat. In the ground 

floor flat, the door of which was open, the officers 

found two men, Tommie Murrie, Jr., and his brother 

Dennis. When the younger Murrie identified himself 

as Tommie Murrie, he was arrested and handcuffed, 

and while standing up was given MIRANDA warnings. 

One of the agents searched the couch where he had 

been sitting and on which they intended to have him 

sit back down and found a loaded automatic pistol. 
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Murrie admitted that the pistol was his and that he 

had a prior felony conviction, and this confession 

was admitted at trial." 

It was soon realized by the officers that the 

man they wanted was Tommie Murrie, Sr. - not Tommie 

Murrie, Jr. One of the grounds of appeal after 

Murrie, Jr., was convicted of unlawful possession 

of a weapon was that the arrest of Murrie, Jr., was 

unlawful, and, therefore, the search of the couch 

unwarranted. The Federal Court of Appeals ruled 

liberally in favor of the officers in this case. 

There is serious question that the ruling was sound 

..• but it was made, nevertheless. 
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WAS SEARCH OF THE COUCH 
UNLAWFUL BECAUSE THERE 

WAS ERROR IN THE WARRANT? 

"We find from this record ample reason to 

believe, as the District Judge did on motion to 

suppress evidence, that there was probable cause 

for the arrest of Tommie Murrie, Jr., since he 

identified himself by the name for which the arrest 

warrant had been issued, and the officer had no 

knowledge at the time that there were two Tommie 

Murries involved. Further, the District Judge 

properly denied the motion to suppress the confession, 

since there is evidence that MIRANDA warnings were 

given not once, but twice prior to questioning. 

"We find no constitutional violation in the 

search of the couch for possible weapons which 

might have placed the lives of the officers in 

jeopardy, either from appellant or his brother. 

The arrest was for possession of heroin, and the 
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search was in the immediate vicinity of the two 

brothers, only one of whom had been handcuffed. 

Both Chimel v. California and Terry v. Ohio recognize 

the constitutional reasonableness of a limited 

search for weapons which might threaten the lives 

of police officers engaged in the proper performance 

of their duties." 

WAS FORCIBLE ENTRY INTO 
THE DOMICILE LAWFUL? 

The next question raised on appeal was the 

lawfulness of the officers' forcible entry into the 

domicile of Tommie Murrie, Jr. On this point, 

the Court said: 

"The most difficult issue on this appeal concerns 

whether or not the District Judge properly defined 

the burden of proof in his hearing on the motion to 

suppress evidence based upon appellant's contention 

that the officer's forcible entry into the house had 

-18-

violated the standards set forth in 18 U.S. C.§ 3109 

(1970). There is now no doubt that this statute's 

requirements (although applicable in terms only to 

search warrants) apply to forcible entry to a home 

when officers seek to make an arrest of a person 

either on arrest warrant or on probable cause. 

"We believe that §3109's conditions for forcible 

entry- 1) announcement of authority, 2) announcement 

of purpose, and 3) grounds for believing entry had 

been refused - are statutory conditions which 

explicate fundamental purposes of the Fourth Amend-

ment. Even if police officers possess a wholly 

lawful warrant for arrest or search, we believe the 

sudden, unannounced breaking open of a dwelling, 

particularly in the nighttime, may not only violate 

the statutory terms of §3109 but also the 

'unreasonable' search standard of the Fourth Amend-

ment. 
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"Clearly where police officers in breaking into 

a home in the nighttime have violated a constitutional 

standard, the burden of proof of exigent or 

exceptional circumstances to justify such a deviation 

from the Fourth Amendment is upon those who are 

seeking the advantage of the exception." 

The appeals court sent the case back to the 

trial court for the trial judge to take further 

evidence relating to exactly what was said and done 

by the officers before breaking in the door, and how 

long they waited after demanding entrance. 

The Murrie case illustrates well the importance 

of ample testimony being taken at trial on the 

circumstances of forcible entry- so that when appeal 

is taken the conviction will be clean. There was 

enough testimony in the Murrie case to justify the 

forcible entry, but the trial judge did not make a 

'finding of fact' that the officers' testimony was 
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true. He ruled, simply, that the defendant, when 

he denied that the officers 'knocked', had not 

sustained his burden to prove that forcible entry 

was unlawful in the circumstances. 

was: 

RULE OF MURRIE 

The ruling of the Court of Appeals in Murrie 

WHEN FORCIBLE ENTRY BY OFFICERS IS MADE INTO 

A DOMICILE, IT IS REQUIRED THAT THE OFFICERS 

PROVE THAT SUCH ENTRY WAS JUSTIFIED - IT IS 

NOT THE BURDEN OF THE DEFENDANT TO PROVE 

OTHERWISE. 



DISPATCHER 
MISSOURI 

HIGHWAY PATROL 
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DISPATCHER 
NASSAU COUNTY 
NEW YORK POLICE 
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INTERSTATE POLICE BULLETIN ... 

RELIANCE ON 

(US v. Nygard, 324 FEd Supp 863) 

FACTS 

Local officers of Nassau County, New York, 

were tipped by telephone that a young man (Nygard) 

of the area had become enraged at his father, who 

lived in cabool, Missouri, had stated that he would 

kill his father, and was on his way to Missouri to 

accomplish the act. 

CORROBORATION OF TIP 

Nassau County officers got in touch with Nygard's 

mother and verified that Nygard had a gun, that he 

had threatened to kill his father, and that he was 

missing from home at that time. 
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INTERSTATE APB 

Based on the tip, plus the corroboration by 

the mother of the suspect, Nassau County police 

put out an APB directed especially to Missouri State 

Highway Patrol and Cabool City Police. Nygard was 

stopped in Missouri driving his car, both were 

searched, and an unlawful weapon (pistol) found in 

the car possessed "on or about the person". 

SUBSEQUENT POLICE ACTION 

Although possession of the pistol was a 

violation of Missouri State law, no State charge 

was preferred against Nygard. Instead, by agreement 

with Federal officers, the defendant was kept in 

custody in a State jail "being held for the FBI". 

Federal charges of possession of an unregistered 
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Federal law (Rules of Court) requires that a 

defendant being held on a Federal charge be brought 

before a Federal magistrate within 20 hours. 

Nygard was held in the State jail for several 

days before Federal officers took custody of him. 

He was convicted of the Federal "possession" charge. 

QUESTIONS ON APPEAL 

Nygard questioned the right of Missouri 

officers to stop him and search his car based on 

the APB received from Nassau County, New York. 

The Court held the stop lawful and the search reason

able ••• especially in view of the fact that the 

police of Nassau County had checked with Nygard's 

mother and verified vital facts substantiating the 

tip they had received that Nygard possessed an 

unlawful weapon and was in the act of attempting 

murder. 
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In the circumstances, said the Court, it was 

the duty of police officers to stop Nygard and 

investigate. 

Nygard was more successful on his second point, 

however. He argued that he was held more than 20 

hours before being taken before a Federal Magistrate 

•.• even though it was in a State jail upon authority 

of State officers. 

The Court agreed with him. Even though Nygard 

was being held in a State jail, it was by agreement 

with Federal officers so that a Federal charge could 

be preferred. He should have been taken before a 

Federal magistrate within 20 hours, said the Court. 

Conviction was reversed. 
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FLEMING'S NOTEBOOK ... Chapter 128 

CHALLENGE TO S.C. DETOX LAW 

SOUTH CAROLINA SUPREME COURT 

The suit brought by the State Highway Patrol, 

SLED, and the South Carolina Law Enforcement 

Officers' Association against the State's so-called 

DETOXIFICATION LAW was argued before the South 

Carolina Supreme Court in Columbia on September 8, 

1976. 

Two grounds were argued in the officers' legal 

attack on the validity of the law .•. (l) it did not 

provide that it would be effective throughout the 

State; and (2) several provisions of the law are so 

vague as to be impossible of reasonable interpretation 

and enforcement. 
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One argument presented on behalf of the law 

enforcement officers was that the law does not 

make adequate provision for what disposition may 

be made of an incapacitated drunk when there is 

no 'treatment center' available and no hospital 

will take him. 

EDITOR 1 S COMMENT: 

Whatever the decision on the 'detoxification' 

case is, it is heartening to see the law enforcement 

officers of the State willing and able to stand up 

and bring to legal test a law which they .•• right or 

wrong ••• felt to be unworkable in its present form. 

Congratulations! 

30 ••• EFM 
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